Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

Fisher Wallace Laboratories Inc.
630 Flushing Avenue, Suite #104
Brooklyn, NY 11206
www.fisherwallace.com

Up to $1,844,761.14 in Class B Non-Voting Common Stock at $8.81
Minimum Target Amount: $9,999.35

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: Fisher Wallace Laboratories Inc.

Address: 630 Flushing Avenue, Suite #104, Brooklyn, NY 11206
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: August 23, 2019

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $9,999.35 | 1,135 shares of Class B Non-Voting Common Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,844,761.14 | 209,394 shares of Class B Non-Voting Common
Stock

Type of Security Offered: Class B Non-Voting Common Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $8.81

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $493.36

"Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Investment Incentives and Bonuses*

Loyalty Bonus | 5% Bonus Shares

As you have previously invested in Fisher Wallace, you are eligible for additional
bonus shares.

Time-Based:

Super Early Bird Bonus

Invest within the first week and receive 10% bonus shares.
Early Bird Bonus

Invest within the first two weeks and receive 5% bonus shares.
Amount-Based:

$1,500+ | Tier 1

Invest $1,500 and receive 2% bonus shares + a free device.
$5,000+ | Tier 2

Invest $5,000 and receive 5% bonus shares + a free device.

$10,000+ | Tier 3



Invest 510,000 and receive 10% bonus shares + a free device.
$25,000+ | Tier 4

Invest $25,000 and receive 15% bonus shares + a free device.
*All perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners’ Bonus:

Fisher Wallace Laboratories Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all
investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine
Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Class B Non-
Voting Common Stock at $8.81 / share, vou will receive 110 shares Class B Non-Voting
Common Stock, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $881. Fractional shares will not be
distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the nearest
whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor's eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses
based on the amount invested and time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors
will also receive the Owner’s Bonus and the Loyvalty Bonus in addition to the
aforementioned bonus.

*Investors will only receive a single bonus, which will be the highest bonus rate they
are eligible for.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

Fisher Wallace manufactures and markets transcranial alternating current stimulation
(“tACS™) medical devices, also known as Cranial Electrotherapy Stimulation devices,
for the treatment of depression, anxiety and/or insomnia. Our proof-of-concept
device, the Fisher Wallace Stimulator®, has been cleared by the FDA for the treatment
of depression, anxiety and,/or insomnia. We are currently developing Version 2.0 of
our technology, called OAK, which is scheduled to be released in 2023.

Our technology has been shown in published studies to stimulate neurochemical
production and lower cortisol, as well as reduce the symptoms of depression, anxiety
and insomnia. Patients use the device at home for 20 minutes per treatment session.
In clinical trials and practice, the majority of patients experience durable symptom



reduction within the first two weeks of treatment.

We believe the depression, anxiety and insomnia treatment markets are inadequately
served by drug therapy and behavioral therapy which provide low to modest efficacy
at high cost and side effect rate and require significant provider administration and
patient engagement. We compete with these standards of care by offering an easy-to-
use, low-risk, effective and affordable treatment option that may be prescribed via
telehealth and shipped directly to patients.

The customer base for our devices is large and growing, and we believe that the
demand for mental health treatment will remain high for the foreseeable future. We
sell our product directly through our website, www.fisherwallace.com, and to date
have sold more than 100,000 devices, generating more than $30 million in lifetime net
revenue.

We have invested millions of dollars in clinical research and product development
over the past three years in an effort to establish a new standard of care for mental
health treatment.

Government Regulation

The Fisher Wallace Stimulator, previously branded the Liss Cranial Stimulator, has
been legally marketed in the United States since 1990 when it received 510k clearances
from the United States Food & Drug Administration (the “FDA”) for the treatment of
depression, anxiety and insomnia. On December 20, 2019, FDA published a Final
Order on the Federal Register that required Fisher Wallace Laboratories to perform
additional clinical research to continue marketing the device for depression, anxiety
and insomnia. Fisher Wallace submitted new anxiety and insomnia data to the FDA in
March 2021 to obtain re-Clearance for these indications and is awaiting the Agency’s
clinical feedback. Fisher Wallace is currently completing a clinical trial to obtain FDA-
Approval for the treatment of Major Depressive Disorder and is on schedule to submit
the data by the Agency's December 11, 2022 deadline.

We expect the FDA to render final re-Clearance and Approval decisions regarding our
clinical data submissions by mid 2023. The FDA may not determine that our clinical
data is sufficient for re-Clearance and/or Approval and could deny Fisher Wallace the
ability to continuing market its technology for the treatment of depression, anxiety
and/or insomnia in the United States, and this would have a material adverse effect on
our business.

Intellectual Property

Our proof-of-concept product, the Fisher Wallace Stimulator®, uses technology that
was protected by a patent that has expired. We consider FDA re-Clearance and
Approval as significant barriers to competition. We may seek additional intellectual
property protection in the course of our development of new products, such as OAK.
We currently own trademarks for our brands, including, Fisher Wallace Stimulator®,
Circadia®, Kortex®, and QAK®,



Emplovyees

We currently have ten full-time employees and two part-time employees. We work
with many consultants and freelancers, allowing us to maintain a low full-time head-
count.

Property

Our corporate headquarters is located at 630 Flushing Avenue, Brooklyn, New York,
where we lease 2100 square feet of office space under a 2-year lease for $7190 per
month.

Legal Proceedings

We are currently not a party to or involved in any litigation. Our management is not
aware of pending or threatened legal actions.

Competitors and Industry

Qur products primarily compete with drug therapy and behavioral therapy, however,
our products are also used in conjunction with these standards of care. Competitive
technologies include transcranial magnetic stimulation, vagal nerve stimulation, and
other forms of cranial electrotherapy stimulation. Many of these competitors have
more access to capital, sales channels and human resources than we do. They may
succeed in developing and marketing competing products earlier than us, or products
that are superior to ours. There can be no assurance that our competitors will not
render our technology or product obsolete or that the products developed by us will be
preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be
assumed that competition will intensify.

Current Stage and Roadmap

Fisher Wallace is a research and development stage company that is generating
revenue with a proof-of-concept product. The company is attempting to obtain
permanent FDA Approval and/or re-Clearance for its technology which may provide a
path to insurance coverage and broad patient adoption. Additionally, the company is
in the process of completing Version 2.0 product development to increase the
desirability of its technology.

The Team
Officers and Directors

Name: Kelly Roman
Kelly Roman's current primary role is with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:



e Position: Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: March 12, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Marketing, product development, regulatory affairs,
fundraising, operations. $225,000 annual cash compensation plus health
insurance coverage.

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: June 06, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Member oversight

Name: Charles Fisher
Charles Fisher's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Chairman
Dates of Service: February 01, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: General oversight with a focus on finance and manufacturing.
This position is currently unpaid with the exception of health insurance
coverage paid for by the company.

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: August 27, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Board Member oversight.

¢ Position: Chief Financial Otfficer
Dates of Service: August 23, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversee finances of the Company

* Position: Secretary
Dates of Service: August 23, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Corporate Secretary

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Fisher Wallace Laboratories
Title: President
Dates of Service: December 29, 2006 - March 01, 2019
Responsibilities: General oversight with a focus on finance and manufacturing.

Name: Simon Webster

Simon Webster's current primary role is with SHUFL Capital. Simon Webster currently
services Quarterly Board Meetings hours per week in their role with the Issuer.



Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director
Dates of Service: December 22, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Governance of the company as a member of the board. Simon
does not receive salary or equity compensation for this role.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: SHUFL Capital
Title: Chief Executive Officer
Dates of Service: March 01, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Overall management and leadership of the business.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Jersey Bulls FC
Title: Director
Dates of Service: November 01, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Corporate governance on the Board.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: CPA Global
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: October 01, 2015 - March 01, 2021
Responsibilities: CEQ

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Class B

iy



Commeon Stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are
sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in
the Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential
investor regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the
other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to

provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Class B Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject
to SEC limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase
cannot be resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are
transferring the stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an
offering registered with the Commission, to a member of yvour family, trust created for
the benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the educational software development industry. However, that
may never happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this
investment.

If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed

Even if the maximum amount is raised in this Offering, the Company will need
additional funds in the future in order to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for
whatever reason, including reasons relating to the Company itself or the broader

economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages to raise only the minimum
amount of funds, sought, it will have to find other sources of funding for some of the
plans outlined in “Use of Proceeds.”

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.



We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of vour
investment.

Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your investment

We may need to engage in common equity, debt or preferred stock financings in the
future. Your rights and the value of your investment in the Class B Shares could be
reduced. Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact
operating results. Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such
designations, rights, preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms
of preferred stock could be more advantageous to those investors than to the holders
of Class B Shares. In addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of
equity securities, institutional or other investors may negotiate terms at least as, and
possibly more, favorable than the terms of your investment.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

Developing new products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties
We are currently in the research and development stage and have only manufactured a



prototype for our Version 2.0 device. Delays or cost overruns in the development of
our Version 2.0 and failure of the product to meet our performance estimates may be
caused by, among other things, unanticipated technological hurdles, difficulties in
manufacturing, changes to design and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could
materially and adversely affect our operating performance and results of operations.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

Subject to applicable law and, except as mentioned in our organizational documents,
the holders of Class B Shares have no voting rights, management or control rights or
influence or vote on any corporate matters, and the voting stockholders and directors
may take actions of which a majority of the holders of Class B Shares disapprove. In
assessing the risks and rewards of an investment in the Class B Shares, investors must
be aware that thev are relying solely on the good faith, judgment, and ability of our
directors, officers, employees and holders of our voting shares, to make appropriate
decisions in respect to our management, and the holders of Class B Shares will be
subject to the decisions of our directors, officers, employees and holders of our voting
shares.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

This offering involves “rolling closings, ” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with improved product
design, scientific validation and new FDA marketing clearances and approvals, our
products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at a faster rate than our
current products. It is possible that our new products will fail to gain market
acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to achieve significant
sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact
the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition



Qur products primarily compete with drug therapy and behavioral therapy, however,
our products may be used in conjunction with these standards of care. Additional
competitive technologies include transcranial magnetic stimulation, vagal nerve
stimulation, and other forms of cranial electrotherapy stimulation. Many of our
competitors have more access to capital and marketing/sales channels and human
resources than we do. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing
products earlier than us, or products that are superior to ours. There can be no
assurance that our competitors will not render our technology or product obsolete or
that the products developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed
technologies. It should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

The Company owns numerous trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and
trade secrets. In addition, the current version of the Fisher Wallace Stimulator® uses
technology that was protected by a patent that has expired. Companies, organizations,
or individuals, including competitors, may hold or obtain patents, trademarks, or
other proprietary rights that would prevent, limit, or interfere with our ability to
market or sell our products, which would make it more difficult for us to operate our
business. These third parties may have applied for, been granted, or obtained patents
that relate to intellectual property, which competes with our intellectual property or
technology. This may require us to develop or obtain alternative technology or obtain
appropriate licenses under these patents, which may not be available on acceptable
terms or at all. Such a circumstance may result in us having to significantly increase
development efforts and resources to redesign our technology. There is a risk that our
means of protecting our intellectual property rights may not be adequate, and
weaknesses or failures in this area could adversely affect our business or reputation,
financial condition, and/or operating results. From time to time, we may receive
communications from holders of patents or trademarks regarding their proprietary
rights. Companies holding patents or other intellectual property rights may bring suits
alleging infringement of such rights. If we are determined to have infringed upon a
third party’s intellectual property rights, we may be required to cease selling one or
more of our products, pay substantial damages, seek a license from the holder of the
infringed intellectual property right, which license may not be available on reasonable
terms or at all, and/or establish and maintain alternative branding for our business.
We may also need to file lawsuits to protect our intellectual property rights from
infringement from third parties, which could be expensive, time-consuming, and
distract management’s attention from our core operations.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a
multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not



to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in
the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right emplovyee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the
data of our investors and the issuer companies that utilize our platform. Further, any
significant disruption in service on Shopify or in its computer systems could reduce
the attractiveness of the platform and result in a loss of investors and companies
interested in using our platform. Further, we rely on a third-party technology provider
to provide some of our back-up technology. Any disruptions of services or cyber-
attacks either on our technology provider or on Shopify could harm our reputation and
materially negatively impact our financial condition and business.

If we are unable to adeguately control the costs associated with operating our
business, our business, financial condition, operating results and prospects will suffer.
If we are unable to maintain a sufficiently low level of costs for manufacturing,



marketing, selling and distributing our products relative to their selling prices, our
operating results, gross margins, business and prospects could be materially and
adversely impacted. Many of the factors that impact our operating costs are beyond
our control. If we are unable to keep our operating costs aligned with the level of
revenues we generate, our operating results, business and prospects will be harmed.

Because no public trading market for our Class B Shares currently exists, it will be
difficult for you to sell your Class B Shares and, if vou are able to sell your Class B
Shares, you may have to sell them at a substantial discount to the price you paid for
the Class B Shares.

There is no public market for our Class B Shares. Until our Class B Shares are listed on
an exchange, if ever, you may not sell your Class B Shares unless the buyer meets the
applicable suitability and minimum purchase standards. Therefore, it will be difficult
for you to sell your Class B Shares promptly or at all. If you are able to sell your Class B
Shares, you may have to sell them at a substantial discount to the price you paid for
the Class B Shares.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected.

Our growth projections are based on an assumption that with improved product
design, scientific validation and new FDA marketing clearances and approvals, our
products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at a faster rate than our
current products. It is possible that our new products will fail to gain market
acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to achieve significant
sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact
the value of vour investment.

If our products fail to perform as expected, we may have to recall them and our ability
to develop, market and sell our products could be harmed.

Our products may contain defects in design and manufacture that may cause them not
to perform as expected or that may require repair. There can be no assurances that we
will not be required to recall any products in the future. There can be no assurance
that we will be able to detect and fix any defects in our products prior to their sale.
Any product defects or any other failure of our products to perform as expected could
harm our reputation and result in adverse publicity, lost revenue, delivery delays,
product recalls, product liability claims, harm to our brand and reputation, and
significant warranty and other expenses, and could have a material adverse impact on
our business, financial condition, operating results and prospects.

Manufacturing and selling our products internationally may present risks.

Certain components of our products are manufactured internationally, and
specifically in China. There are many risks associated with international business.
These risks include, but are not limited to, language barriers, fluctuations in currency
exchange rates, political and economic instability, regulatory compliance difficulties,
problems enforcing agreements, and greater exposure of our intellectual property to
markets where a high probability of unlawful appropriation may occur. Failure to
successfully mitigate any of these potential risks could damage our business. In
addition, there is currently a risk that the coronavirus outbreak in China may disrupt



parts supply. We intend to mitigate this risk through inventory and supply chain
management practices. There are many potential contract manufacturers that can
produce our products both in the US and abroad. In addition, we are required to
comply with all applicable domestic and foreign export control laws, including the
Export Administration Regulations. In addition, we may be subject to the Foreign
Corrupt Practices Act and international counterparts that generally bar bribes or
unreasonable gifts for foreign governments and officials. Violation of any of these laws
or regulations could result in significant sanctions, which could reduce our future
revenue and net income.

We are subject to changes in foreign currency exchange rates.

Some of our products are manufactured in China and some are sold in other countries
throughout the world. As a result, the price we pay for our products and what they may
be sold for depends on the exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and other
currencies. Over the past several years, these exchange rates have had material
fluctuations and we expect they will continue to fluctuate. If the U.S. dollar becomes
significantly weaker, our products will likely cost us more to purchase and we may
receive less than expected when they are sold, adversely impact the economics of our
business and your investment.

Natural disasters and other events beyond our control could materially adversely
affect us.

Natural disasters or other catastrophic events may cause damage or disruption to our
operations, international commerce and the global economy, and thus could have a
strong negative effect on us. Our business operations are subject to interruption by
natural disasters, fire, power shortages, pandemics and other events beyond our
control. Although we maintain crisis management and disaster response plans, such
events could make it difficult or impossible for us to deliver our services to our
customers and could decrease demand for our services. In December 2019, a novel
strain of coronavirus, COVID-19, was reported in Wuhan, China. The World Health
Organization has since declared the outbreak to constitute a pandemic. The extent of
the impact of COVID-19 on our operational and financial performance will depend on
certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, impact on
our customers and our sales cycles, impact on our customer, employee or industry
events, and effect on our vendors, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.
At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact our financial condition or
results of operations is uncertain. If the COVID-19 outbreak continues to spread, we
may need to limit operations or implement limitations, including work-from-home
policies. There is a risk that other countries or regions may be less effective at
containing COVID-19, or it may be more difficult to contain if the outbreak reaches a
larger population or broader geography, in which case the risks described herein could
be elevated significantly.

Our officers and directors control substantially all of our voting shares.

As of the date hereof, the officers and directors of the Company, control a majority of
our Class A Common Stock. Therefore, subject to certain approval rights held by the
holders of our Series Seed Preferred Stock, our officers and directors are able control



our management and affairs and most matters requiring stockholder approval,
including, but not limited to, the election of directors and approval of significant
corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership and voting power may have
the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control, which may not be in the best
interest of our other stockholders.

Holders of our Class B Shares have no voting rights.

Subject to applicable law and, except as mentioned in our organizational documents,
the holders of Class B Shares have no voting rights, management or control rights or
influence or vote on any corporate matters, and the voting stockholders and directors
may take actions of which a majority of the holders of Class B Shares disapprove. In
assessing the risks and rewards of an investment in the Class B Shares, investors must
be aware that thev are relying solely on the good faith, judgment, and ability of our
directors, officers, employees and holders of our voting shares, to make appropriate
decisions in respect to our management, and the holders of Class B Shares will be
subject to the decisions of our directors, officers, employees and holders of our voting
shares.

The holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have a dividend preference.

We may not pay any dividends on shares of common stock (other than dividends on
shares of Common Stock payable in shares of Common Stock) unless the holders of the
Series Seed Preferred Stock first or simultaneously receive a dividend equal to the
dividend they would receive if the Series Seed Preferred Stock were converted into
shares of common stock.

The holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have a liquidation preference.

The holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have a liquidation preference equal to
$2.7358 per share. Therefore, if we are dissolved, liquidated, wind down, or engage in
a merger, reorganization or sale of substantially all of our assets, and there are assets
available for distribution, the holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock would receive
$2.7358 per share, prior to any payment to the holders of Common Stock, and if our
assets are insufficient to fully pay the liguidation preference, all remaining assets
shall be distributed to the holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock. There are currently
913,809 outstanding shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock. As a result, assuming no
other shares of Preferred Stock were issued, upon a liquidation, dissolution or winding
up, the holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock would receive $2,500,000 prior to any
distribution of assets to the common stockholders.

Holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have certain anti-dilution protection.

Pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, the
holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have weighted average anti-dilution protection
with respect to certain additional issuances of our securities for issue prices that are
below the original issuance price for such series of Series Seed Preferred Stock, or
$2.7358 per share. Pursuant to a Side Letter Agreement, we have agreed to issue the
holder of Series Seed Preferred Stock such additional shares, such that they shall hold
not less 9.88% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company, on a fully diluted
basis, taking into account any shares we issue in crowdfunding offerings during 2022.



If such anti-dilution provisions are triggered, it would result in the dilution of your
investment.

Our intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective.

The current version of the Fisher Wallace Stimulator® uses technology that was
protected by a patent that has expired. As a result, the current version may be
considered analogous to a generic medication, and is therefore vulnerable to
competition from products that provide similar safety and effectiveness. We have filed
a provisional patent application covering the new version of the stimulator; however,
a patent may never be issued or certain claims may be rejected or may need to be
narrowed, which may limit the protection we are attempting to obtain. We also own
several trademarks and domain names. Companies, organizations, or individuals,
including competitors, may hold or obtain patents, trademarks, or other proprietary
rights that would prevent, limit, or interfere with our ability to market or sell our
products, which would make it more difficult for us to operate our business. These
third parties may have applied for, been granted, or obtained patents that relate to
intellectual property, which competes with our intellectual property or technology.
This may require us to develop or obtain alternative technology, or obtain appropriate
licenses under these patents, which may not be available on acceptable terms or at all.
Such a circumstance may result in us having to significantly increase development
efforts and resources to redesign our technology. There is a risk that our means of
protecting our intellectual property rights may not be adequate, and weaknesses or
failures in this area could adversely affect our business or reputation, financial
condition, and,/or operating results. From time to time, we may receive
communications from holders of patents or trademarks regarding their proprietary
rights. Companies holding patents or other intellectual property rights may bring suits
alleging infringement of such rights. If we are determined to have infringed upon a
third party’s intellectual property rights, we may be required to cease selling one or
more of our products, pay substantial damages, seek a license from the holder of the
infringed intellectual property right, which license may not be available on reasonable
terms or at all, and/or establish and maintain alternative branding for our business.
We may also need to file lawsuits to protect our intellectual property rights from
infringement from third parties, which could be expensive, time consuming, and
distract management’s attention from our core operations.

We store personally identifiable information of consumers which is subject to vast
regulation.

Some jurisdictions have enacted laws requiring companies to notify individuals of
data security breaches involving certain types of personal data. Evolving regulations
regarding personal data and personal information, in the European Union and
elsewhere, including, but not limited to, the General Data Protection Regulation,
which we refer to as GDPR, the California Consumer Privacy Act of 2018 and similar
privacy laws in other states and jurisdictions, may limit or inhibit our ability to
operate or expand our business, or market our products. Such laws and regulations
require or may require us to implement privacy and security policies, permit
consumers to access, correct or delete personal information stored or maintained by
us, inform individuals of security incidents that affect their personal information, and,



in some cases, obtain consent to use personal information for specified purposes. Such
laws and regulations could restrict our ability and our customers’ ability to collect and
use personal information, which may reduce demand for our solutions. Changing
industry standards and industry self-regulation regarding the collection, use and
disclosure of data may have similar effects. Existing and future privacy and data
protection laws and increasing sensitivity of consumers to unauthorized disclosures
and use of personal information may also negatively affect the public’s perception of
our kiosks and software. If our solutions are perceived to cause, or are otherwise
unfavorably associated with, invasions of privacy, whether or not illegal, we or our
customers may be subject to public criticism. Any failure on our part to comply with
applicable privacy and data protection laws, regulations, policies and standards or any
inability to adequately address privacy concerns associated with our solutions, even if
unfounded, could subject us to liability, damage our reputation, impair our sales and
harm our business. Furthermore, the costs of compliance with, and other burdens
imposed by, such laws, regulations, policies and standards may result in a decrease in
our profitability and/or limit adoption of and demand for our products.

We have existing intellectual property that we might not be able to protect properly.
One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company
owns numerous trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade secrets.
We believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual
property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the
rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its
intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that
unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the capital of the
Company.

As a result of government regulation, we may be unable to market our devices in the
United States in the future for the designations of depression, anxiety and/or
insomnia.

The FDA may determine that our clinical data is insufficient for re-clearance and/or
approval, which could render us unable to continue marketing our product in the
United States, for the treatment of depression, anxiety and/or insomnia. If the FDA
rescinds the company's marketing clearance, the company's business will be adversely
affected and may fail as a result.

Our failure to comply with government regulations could adversely affect our
business.

QOur ability to market and sell our products is dependent on our compliance with
governmental regulations such as FDA regulations, Federal Trade Commission
regulations and health and safety codes, both domestically and abroad. While we
believe we operate in substantial compliance with these laws, they are complex and
subject to change. Our failure to comply with any of these laws could result in
required changes in the design of the products, the manner in which we market our
products, fines, penalties, judgments or other sanctions, including the temporary
suspension of operations or a delay in the marketing and sales of our products, any of
which could adversely affect our business, operations and our reputation.



Risks of borrowing.

We have an outstanding Promissory Note due to our founder, Charles A. Fisher, and
have recently launched a private placement to raise up to $750,000 in Convertible
Promissory Notes. In addition, we currently finance our online marketing efforts using
various lines of credit. If we were unable to maintain such credit, it would reduce our
ability to market our product online and could have a material adverse impact on our
business, financial condition, operating results and prospects. In addition, we may
have to seek additional loans from financial institutions. Typical loan agreements
might contain restrictive covenants which may impair our operating flexibility. A
default under any loan agreement or note could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations or financial condition.

Qur financial statements include a going concern note.

Qur ability to continue as a going concern for the next twelve months is dependent
upon our ability to generate sufficient cash flows from operations to meet our
obligations, and/or to obtain additional capital financing from investors and/or third
parties. No assurance can be given that we will be successful in these efforts. These
factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going
concern for a reasonable period of time.

We depend on certain key personnel and must attract and retain additional talent.
QOur future success depends on the efforts of key personnel and consultants, especially
our co-founder, chief executive officer and director, Kelly Roman and our co-founder,
chief financial officer, secretary and director, Charles A. Fisher. As we grow, we may
need to attract and hire additional employees in sales, marketing, design,
development, operations, finance, legal, human resources and other areas. Depending
on the economic environment and our performance, we may not be able to locate or
attract qualified individuals for such positions when we need them. We may also make
hiring mistakes, which can be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring
and investing in the incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right
employee fit. If we are unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too
many hiring mistakes, it is likely that our business will suffer from not having the
right emplovyees in the right positions at the right time. This would likely adversely
impact the value of your investment.

We depend on technology and advanced information systems, which may fail or be
subject to disruption.

There are no assurances that our software and website will be uninterrupted or fully
secure, or that users will be willing to access, adopt, and use our website and software.
Further, our software systems may be the target of malicious attacks seeking to
identify and exploit weaknesses in our software. Cyber-attacks may target vendors,
customers or other third parties, or the communication infrastructure on which they
depend. Despite good faith efforts by us to mitigate the risks associated with cyber-
attacks through various security protocols, an attack or a breach of security could
result in a loss and theft of private data, violation of applicable privacy and other laws,
significant legal and financial exposure, damage to reputation, and a loss of
confidence in security measures, any of which could have a materially adverse effect



on our business. The integrity, reliability, and operational performance of our
information technology (“IT”) infrastructure are critical to our operations. Qur IT
infrastructure may be damaged or interrupted by increases in usage, human error,
unauthorized access, natural hazards or disasters, or similarly disruptive events.
Furthermore, our systems may be unable to support a significant increase in traffic or
increase in user numbers, whether as a result of organic or inorganic growth of the
business. While we have taken several measures to safeguard against a failure of our
IT infrastructure, or the telecommunications and/or other third-party infrastructure
on which such infrastructure relies, could lead to significant costs and disruptions
that could reduce revenue, damage our reputation, and have a materially adverse
effect on our operations, financial performance, and prospects. We intend to institute
business continuity procedures and security measures to protect against network or IT
failure or disruption. However, these procedures and measures may not be effective
against all forms of disruptions and may not ensure that we are able to carry on our
business. Should these measures and protections fail to operate as intended or at all,
they may not prevent a material disruption to our operations, and the consequence of
such would have a materially adverse effect on our financial performance and
prospects. We do not guarantee that the use of applications and systems designed for
system security will effectively counter evolving security risks or address the security
concerns of existing and potential users. Any failures in our security measures could
have a materially adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of
operations. In addition, our controls may not be effective in detecting or preventing
any intrusion or other security breaches, or safeguarding against sabotage, hackers,
viruses, and other forms of cybercrime. Any failure in these protections could harm
our reputation and have a materially adverse effect on our operations, financial
performance, and prospects. We store investor, customer and vendor personal and
other sensitive information/digital data. Any accidental or willful security breaches or
other unauthorized access could cause the theft and criminal use of this data and/or
theft and criminal use of our information. Security breaches or unauthorized access to
confidential information could also expose us to liability related to the loss of the
information, time-consuming and expensive litigation, and negative publicity. If
security measures are breached because of third-party action, employee error,
malfeasance or otherwise, or if design flaws in our software are exposed and exploited,
and, as a result, a third party obtains unauthorized access to any of our investor,
customer or vendor data, our relationships with our investors, customers, vendors,
and/or other third parties will be severely damaged, and we could incur significant
liability. Since techniques used to obtain unauthorized access or to sabotage systems
change frequently and generally are not recognized until they are launched against a
target, we and any third-party hosting facility that we may use, may be unable to
anticipate these techniques or to implement adequate preventative measures.

If we cannot raise sufficient funds, we may not succeed.

Even if the maximum amount is raised in this offering, we may need additional funds
in the future in order to grow, and if we cannot raise those funds for whatever reason,
including reasons outside our control, such as another significant downturn in the
economy, we may not survive.



The subscription agreement includes an exclusive venue provision.

Qur subscription agreement includes a forum selection provision that requires any
claim against us based on the subscription agreement not arising under the federal
securities laws to be brought in a court of competent jurisdiction in the State of New
York. This forum selection provisions may limit investors’ ability to bring claims in
judicial forums that they find favorable to such disputes and may discourage lawsuits
with respect to such claims, as investors may be compelled to travel to New York to
prosecute or defend any claims involving us.

We are not likely to pay cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

We currently intend to retain any future earnings for use in the operation and
expansion of our business. Accordingly, we do not expect to pay any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future but will review this policy as circumstances dictate.

Our Class B Shares may be subject to registration under the Exchange Act.

Companies with total assets above $10 million and more than 2,000 holders of record
of its equity securities, or 500 holders of record of its equity securities who are not
accredited investors, at the end of their fiscal year, must register that class of equity
securities with the SEC under the Exchange Act. Upon the closing of this offering,
there may be over 2,000 holders of our Class B Shares. If and when we are deemed to
have assets above $10 million, we could be required to register our Class B Shares with
the SEC under the Exchange Act, which would be a laborious and expensive process.
In addition, if such registration takes place, we will have materially higher compliance
and reporting costs going forward.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from officers and
directors of the company or their immediate family members.

Once the total amount of funds raised in this offering exceeds the minimum funding
goal, officers and directors (and immediate family members) of the company may
make investments in this offering. Any such investments will be included in the raised
amount reflected on the campaign page.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Number of Securities

Name Owned Type of Security Owned |Percentage

Class A Voting Common

Stock 55.0%

Charles Fisher |3,900,000

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Class A Voting Common Stock, Class B Non-Voting
Common Stock, Series Seed Preferred Stock, and Convertible Promissory Notes. As
part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 209,394
of Class B Non-Voting Common Stock.

Class A Voting Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 7,100,000 with a total of 6,068,096 outstanding.
Voting Rights

One Vote Per Share.
Material Rights

The total number of shares outstanding on a fully difuted basis, 9,258,525 shares,
includes 6,068,096 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock, 2,276,618 shares of Class
B Non-Voting Common Stock, and 915,809 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock.

Subject to the liquidation and dividend preferences of the holders of Series Seed
Preferred Stock, the Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock are entitled to
share ratably in any dividend or liquidating distribution.

Stock Options

There are 68,096 outstanding options to purchase Class A Common Stock, having an
exercise price of $2.42.

Please see the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation attached
as Exhibit F.

Class B Non-Voting Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 4,000,000 with a total of 2,276,618 outstanding.



Voting Rights
There are no voting rights associated with Class B Non-Voting Common Stock.
Material Rights

The total number of shares outstanding on a fully diluted basis, 9,258,523 shares,
includes 6,068,096 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock, 2,276,618 shares of Class
B Non-Voting Common Stock, and 915,809 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock.

Subject to the liquidation and dividend preferences of the holders of Series Seed
Preferred Stock, the Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock are entitled to
share ratably in any dividend or liquidating distribution.

Stock Options & Warrants
The total amount outstanding above includes:

Options to purchase 148,711 shares of Class B Common Stock, which have exercise
prices of $2.18 per share.

Warrants to purchase 47,557 shares of Class B Common Stock, 37,557 of which have
an exercise price of $6.21 per share, and 10,000 of which have an exercise price of
$2.18 per share.

A pool of 697,002 shares of common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to options
that may be issued in the future.

Pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation attached as
Exhibit F, as amended, the holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have weighted
average anti-dilution protection with respect to certain additional issuances of our
securities for issue prices that are below the original issuance price for such series of
Series Seed Preferred Stock, or $2.7358 per share. Pursuant to a Side Letter
Agreement, we have agreed to issue the holder of Series Seed Preferred Stock such
additional shares, such that they shall hold not less than 9.88% of the outstanding
Common Stock of the Company, on a fully diluted basis, taking into account any
shares we issue in crowdfunding offerings during 2022. As a result, of the foregoing,
your ownership interest will be diluted.

In addition, the Company intends to launch additional offerings which may likely
cause dilution to the existing investors.

Please see the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation attached
as Exhibit F.

Series Seed Preferred Stock
The amount of security authorized is 913,809 with a total of 913,809 outstanding.

Voting Rights



One vote for each share of Common Stock into which the Series Seed Preferred Stock
is convertible.

Material Rights
Liquidation Preference

In the event of any liquidation or winding up of the Company, or a merger,
consolidation or sale of substantially all of the assets of the Company (a "Deemed
Liquidation Event”), the holders of Series Seed Preferred shall be entitled to receive,
prior to and in preference to the holders of Common Stock, an amount equal to the
greater of (i) the Original Issue Price (as defined below) for each share of Series Seed
Preferred, plus any declared but unpaid dividends, and (ii) such amount per share as
would have been payable had each such share been converted into Class A Common
Stock immediately prior to such liguidation, winding up or Deemed Liquidation Event)
(the "Series Seed Liquidation Amount”). The "Original Issue Price" is $2.7538, and is
subject to appropriate adjustments in the event of any stock dividend, stock split,
combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the Series Seed Stock,
and certain issuances of securities at below the Original Issue Price (See Anti-Dilution
Adjustments below).

After the payment of the Series Seed Ligquidation Amount to the holders of Series Seed
Preferred, the remaining assets of the Company will be distributed ratably to the
holders of Common Stock.

Conversion

Each share of Series Seed Preferred shall be automatically converted into Class A
Common Stock at the then-applicable conversion rate (i) in the event that the holders
of a majority of the Series Seed Preferred (the “Preferred Majority”) consents to such
conversion, or (ii) upon the closing of an underwritten public offering on a firm
commitment basis, resulting in aggregate net proceeds to the Company (after
underwriting discounts and commissions) of not less than $20 million, based on a pre-
money valuation of the Company of not less than $50 million. The conversion price
applicable to each share of Series Seed Preferred Stock equals the Original Issue Price,
however, is subject to broad-based weighted average anti-dilution for certain future
issuances of securities at an issuance price, or, with respect to convertible securities,
having a conversion price, below the Original Issue Price.

Dividend Preference

The Company shall not declare, pay or set aside any dividends on shares of any other
class or series of capital stock (other than dividends on shares of Common Stock
payable in shares of Common Stock) unless the holders of the Series Seed Preferred
Stock then outstanding shall first receive, or simultaneously receive, a dividend on
each outstanding share of Series Seed Preferred Stock in an amount at least equal to (i)
in the case of a dividend on Common Stock or anv class or series that is convertible
into Common Stock, that dividend per share of Series Seed Preferred Stock as would



equal the product of (A) the dividend payable on each share of such class or series
determined, if applicable, as if all shares of such class or series had been converted
into Common Stock and (B) the number of shares of Common Stock issuable upon
conversion of a share of Series Seed Preferred Stock, in each case calculated on the
record date for determination of holders entitled to receive such dividend or (ii) in the
case of a dividend on any class or series that is not convertible into Common Stock, at
a rate per share of Series Seed Preferred Stock determined by (A) dividing the amount
of the dividend pavyable on each share of such class or series of capital stock by the
original issuance price of such class or series of capital stock (subject to appropriate
adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or other
similar recapitalization with respect to such class or series) and (B) multiplying such
fraction by an amount equal to the Series Seed Original Issue Price; provided that, if
the Company declares, pays or sets aside, on the same date, a dividend on shares of
more than one class or series of capital stock of the Company, the dividend payable to
the holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock pursuant to this paragraph shall be
calculated based upon the dividend on the class or series of capital stock that would
result in the highest Series Seed Preferred Stock dividend. The right to receive
dividends on shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock are not cumulative, and no right to
dividends shall accrue to holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock by reason of the fact
that dividends on said shares are not declared or paid.

Director Appointment Rights

The holders of record of the shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock, exclusively and as a
separate class, shall be entitled to elect one (1) of the three directors of the Company
(the "Series Seed Director").

Protective Provisions

At any time when at least 25% of shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock (subject to
appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or
other similar recapitalization with respect to the Series Seed Preferred Stock) are
outstanding, the Company must obtain the written consent or affirmative vote of a
majority of the outstanding shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock, to among other
things, liquidate, dissolve or wind-up the business and affairs of the company, effect
any merger or consolidation, effect an initial public offering, change the constituting
documents of the company in a manner that adversely affects the powers, preferences
or rights of the Series Seed Preferred Stock, including, creating additional classes of
stock that ranks senior or on par with the Series Seed Preferred Stock. See Amended
and Restated Certificate of Incorporation.

Preemptive Rights

The holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have the preemptive right to participate in
any future sales of securities by the Company (subject to customary exclusions), on a
pro rata basis based on such holder's ownership percentage of Common Stock of the
Company prior to such sales (on a fully diluted basis including any shares of Common
Stock issuable or issued upon conversion of shares of Series Seed Preferred and



exercise of all authorized options).

Right of First Refusal

The Company first and the Investor second will have a pro rata right of first refusal
with respect to any shares of Common Stock of the Company, proposed to be
transferred by any of the Company’s founding stockholders.

Tag Along Rights

The holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have a tag-along (co-sale) right with
respect to the sale of any shares of Common Stock of the Company, proposed to be
transferred by Founding Stockholders, which would result in a change of control.

Registration Rights

The holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock are entitled to registration rights if and to
the extent they are granted to any future stockholder.

Information Rights

Prior to a Qualified IPO, the Company shall provide to the holders of Series Seed
Preferred Stock: (i) unaudited annual financial statements within 120 days after the
end of each fiscal year, (ii) unaudited quarterly financial statements within 45 days
after the end of each of the first three fiscal quarters of each fiscal year, (iii)
management projections and budgets quarterly and annually one month prior to the
start of each year. In addition each holder of Series Seed Preferred Stock has the right
to inspect the Company’s properties, books and records.

Anti-Dilution Protection

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the holders of
Series Seed Preferred Stock have weighted average anti-dilution protection with
respect to certain additional issuances of our securities for issue prices that are below
the original issuance price for such series of Series Seed Preferred Stock, or $2.7358 per
share (as may be adjusted pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation).

Pursuant to a Side Letter Agreement entered into between the company and the Series
Seed Preferred holders, if as a result of shares sold in Crowdfunding offerings during
2022, including this Offering (and compensatory equity issued to StartEngine in
connection with such shares), the Series Seed Preferred holders hold less than 9.88%
of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company, on a fully diluted basis, the
Company shall amend the Series Seed Purchase Agreement and its Certificate of
Incorporation, to (a) adjust the (1) Series Seed Per Share Purchase Price, (2) the Series
Seed Original Issue Price and (3) the Series Seed Conversion Price and (b) increase the
number of authorized shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock, Common Stock and Class
A Voting Common Stock, such that, after taking into account any shares of Common
Stock sold in such offerings (and any compensatory equity issued to StartEngine in



connection with such shares), the number of shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock
issued to the Series Seed Preferred holders, and the number of shares of Class A
Common Stock underlying the Series Seed Preferred Stock, equals a number of shares
of Class A Common Stock that represents, on a fully diluted basis, 9.88% of the
outstanding Common Stock of the Company, after giving effect to the shares sold in
such offerings (and any compensatory equity issued to StartEngine in connection with
such shares).

Please see the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation attached
as Exhibit F.

Convertible Promissory Notes

The security will convert into Class a common stock and the terms of the Convertible
Promissory Notes are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $382,000.00
Maturity Date: August 31, 2023
Interest Rate: 8.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Voluntary

Material Rights

The Note is due and payable in six (6) equal monthly installments, with the first
installment being due on February 30, 2025.

The Note is convertible into shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock, at a
conversion price of $2.7358 per share. To prevent dilution to the Company’s
stockholders, the Company's founder’s have agreed to forfeit a number of their Class A
Shares equal to the number of Class A Shares issued to the investor upon the
conversion of the Note.

Pursuant to an Investor Rights Agreement the investor has the right to invest an
amount equal to 20% of the principal amount of the Note, in the Company’s next non-
crowdfunding equity financing, at a 25% discount to the offering price in such
financing.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Non-Voting common stock of the company, you will have
limited rights in regards to the corporate actions of the company, including additional
issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its
significant assets, or company transactions with related parties. Further, investors in
this offering may have rights less than those of other investors, and will have limited
influence on the corporate actions of the company.



Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

Pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, the
holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock have weighted average anti-dilution protection
with respect to certain additional issuances of our securities for issue prices that are
below the original issuance price for such series of Series Seed Preferred Stock, or
$2.7358 per share.

Pursuant to a Side Letter Agreement, we have agreed to issue the holder of Series Seed
Preferred Stock such additional shares, such that they shall hold not less 9.88% of the
outstanding Common Stock of the Company, on a fully diluted basis, taking into
account any shares we issue in crowdfunding offerings during 2022. As a result, of the
foregoing, your ownership interest will be diluted.

If the company decides to issue more shares, an investor could experience value
dilution, with each share being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the

total percentage an investor owns being less than before. There may also be earnings
dilution, with a reduction in the amount earned per share (though this typically occurs
only if the company offers dividends, and most early-stage companies are unlikely to
offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
¢ Inan [PO;
e Tothe company;
® To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities



We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Class A Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $599.99
Number of Securities Sold: 5,999,999
Use of proceeds: Company Operations. This was a rollover of assets from the LLC
to the C-Corp.
Date: September 12, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

e Name: Class B Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,058,330.00
Number of Securities Sold: 445,403
Use of proceeds: General working capital.
Date: June 16, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

¢ Name: Class B Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $4,664,619.00
Number of Securities Sold: 759,336
Use of proceeds: General operating capital.
Date: October 31, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation A+

e Name: Preferred Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $2,500,000.00
Number of Securities Sold: 913,809
Use of proceeds: General working capital.
Date: December 22, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $382,000.00
Use of proceeds: General working capital.
Date: June 06, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(c)

e Name: Class A Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $0.01
Number of Securities Sold: 1
Use of proceeds: Working Capital



Date: September 12, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: Section 4(a)(2)

e Name: Class B Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $1,153,699.67
Number of Securities Sold: 136,808
Use of proceeds: General Working Capital.
Date: May 28, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

e Name: Class B Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $305,909.64
Number of Securities Sold: 37,601
Use of proceeds: Research and Development
Date: September 02, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

The Company has been engaged in clinical research and product development
initiatives since 2019 that have cost more than the company generated in revenue
from operations, therefore requiring outside sources of capital, namely, equity
crowdfunding from 2019 - 2021 and venture capital from 2021 - 2022.

We anticipate significant expenditure on research and development to conclude by
the end of 2022, which, if revenue from operations (sales of Version 1) grows, will
allow the company to be substantially profitable in 2023. In short, our goal is for
profitability to occur in 2023,



Revenue - There was only a slight decrease in revenue during 2021 compared to 2020,
otherwise revenue was relatively flat ($4,230,290 in 2021 vs. $ 4,250,866 in 2020).

Cost of Revenue - The decrease in our cost of goods sold during 2021 ($623,703 in
2021 vs. $970,761 in 2020), is primarily a result of our migration of contract
manufacturing from the United States to China.

Gross Margins - The increase in gross margin is primarily a result of our migration of
contract manufacturing from the United States to China.

Expenses - Operating expenses increased significantly in 2021 as a result of our
clinical trials and to meet FDA regulatory requirements, as well as costs associated
with Version 2 product development.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently investing substantial capital into the research and
development of our Version 2.0 product. We are of the opinion that the historical cash
flow will be indicative of the minimum revenue and cash tlo\wvs expected in 2022 and
beyond because we are optimizing and scaling our marketing operations for Version |
and developing a Version 2 product, both of which we believe will grow revenue.

Past cash was primarily generated through sales and equity capital raises. Our goal is
to reach a $10M annual sales run rate by the end of 2022. 2022 will also witness high
expenses due to product development and research investments. By 2023 we will be
focusing on profitability and scaling sales. Please note this is forward-looking
information and refer to our risk factors.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

The Company had an average monthly cash balance of $501,162 for the month ending
June 30, 2022. The Company also had capital resources available in the form of a line
of credit for $1 million from Google, a $200K credit line from Bing, and recurring
access to Shopify Capital advances against revenue that typically amounts to
approximately one month of revenue. Incorrect reporting of June 30, 2022 cash
balance in previous Form C filing.

In preparing our financial statements for the 2022 Interim Period, we discovered that
the Form C posted for our previous Regulation CF that closed on September 2, 2022,
incorrectly reported $470,940 in cash as of June 30, 2022, which was the opening cash
balance as of such date, not the closing cash balance, which was $116,369. Our daily

cash balance fluctuates significantly; the average monthly cash balance in June 2022
was $501,162.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these



funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

If product sales underperform, we believe the funds of this campaign may be critical to
supporting the day-to-day operations of the company.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the

total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign may be necessary for the viability of the
Company. Of the total funds that our Company projects to accumulate in 2022,
primarily through device sales, between 18% - 28% will be made up of funds raised
from this crowdfunding campaign if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount ($10K), the Company may be
able to operate indefinitely if product sales remain steady, however, if we do not raise
a sufficient amount of capital, we will likely need to delay product development until
additional capital is raised. We expect we will incur, after the date hereof, an
additional $1.5 million in product development expenses to complete our Version 2.0
product (OAK). If the Company raises the minimum offering amount and product sales
underperform, we may no longer be able to operate.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate we will be able to
operate indefinitely if product sales do not underperform, however, we may still need
to raise additional capital to complete product development and commercialize the
new product. If the Company raises the maximum offering amount and product sales
underperform, we may no longer be able to operate.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

The Company recently launched an offering of up to $750,000 in Convertible
Promissory Notes convertible into Class A Common Stock, at a conversion price of
$2.7358 per share. To prevent dilution to the Company's stockholders, the Company's
founder's have agreed to forfeit a number of their Class A Shares equal to the number
of Class A Shares issued to the Noteholders upon the conversion of the Notes.



The Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital including venture
capital, which could be pursued if the company achieves clinical research milestones
or its crowdfunding campaigns do not generate sufficient capital.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Charles Fisher
Amount Owed: $620,416.00
Interest Rate: 5.0%
Repayment commences in April 2023 at $20,000 per month.

e Creditor: American Express
Amount Owed: $15,810.00
Interest Rate: 9.0%

e Creditor: Facebook

Amount Owed: $298,974.48
Interest Rate: 0.0%
$5,000 per week.

e Creditor: Clearbank
Amount Owed: $137,674.75
Interest Rate: 0.0%

$20,000 per month payments.

e Creditor: Shopify Capital
Amount Owed: $140,925.00
Interest Rate: 13.0%

¢ Creditor: Google Ads
Amount Owed: $338,185.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

¢ Creditor: Bing
Amount Owed: $65,604.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

e Creditor: Various Investors
Amount Owed: $382,000.00
Interest Rate: 8.0%
Maturity Date: August 31, 2023
The Notes are payable in 6 equal consecutive monthly installments commencing
on March 31, 2023. The Note are convertible into shares of Class B Common
Stock of the Company at a conversion price of $1.7358 per share.



Related Party Transactions

e Name of Entity: Charles A. Fisher
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: During 2017 and 2018, Charles A.
Fisher, our chairman, chief financial officer, secretary, and holder of over 20% of
our voting securities, extended loans to Fisher-Wallace Laboratories, LLC, in the
aggregate amount of $576,525. On November 17, 2022, we memorialized such
loans by issuing Mr. Fisher a Promissory Note in the amount of $576,525.
Material Terms: Pursuant to the Promissory Note, interest at a rate of 5% per
annum commenced accruing on the principal amount of the Note on January 1,
2020, and the Note was due and payable at such times as funds are reasonably
available to the Company. On November 17, 2021, the Note was amended to
provide that the Note shall be repaid in monthly installments of $20,000
commencing on April 1, 2022, On April 1, 2022, the Note was amended to extend
the repayment commencement date to April 1, 2023. As of June 30, 2022,
interest had accrued on the loan in the amount of $43,891. Pursuant to an Asset
Purchase Agreement entered into in or about September 2019, Fisher-Wallace
Laboratories, LLC, sold us substantially all of its assets in exchange for 5,999,999
shares of our Class A Common Stock, and we assumed all of the liabilities of
Fisher-Wallace Laboratories, LLC, including, the Note.

¢ Name of Entity: Simon Webster
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: In December 2021, we engaged in
an offering under Rule 4(1)(a) of the Securities Act, pursuant to which we sold
456,905 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock for $2.7358 per share or an
agerezate offering price of $1,250,000, to SHUFL Venture Capita LTD. Upon the
closing of such offering, Simon Webster, the Chief Executive Officer of SHUFL
Venture Capital LTD., was appointed a director. Pursuant to the exercise of an
option by the holders of Series Seed Preferred Stock, in March 2022, we sold an
additional 456,904 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock to such holders in
exchange for $2.7358 per share or an aggregate offering price of $1,250,000.
Pursuant to a Side Letter Agreement entered into between the Company and the
Series Seed Preferred holders, if as a result of shares sold in Crowdfunding
Offerings (and compensatory equity issued to StartEngine in connection with
such shares), the Series Seed Preferred holders hold less than 9.88% of the
outstanding Common Stock of the Company, on a fully diluted basis, the
Company shall amend the Series Seed Purchase Agreement and its Certificate of
Incorporation, to (a) adjust the (1) Series Seed Per Share Purchase Price, (2) the
Series Seed Original Issue Price and (3) the Series Seed Conversion Price and (b)
increase the number of authorized shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock,
Common Stock and Class A Voting Common Stock, such that, after taking into
account any shares of Common Stock sold in this Offering (and any



compensatory equity issued to StartEngine in connection with such shares), the
number of shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock issued to the Series Seed
Preferred holders, and the number of shares of Class A Common Stock
underlying the Series Seed Preferred Stock, equals a number of shares of Class A
Common Stock that represents, on a fully diluted basis, 9.88% of the outstanding
Common Stock of the Company, after giving effect to the shares sold in the
Offering (and any compensatory equity issued to StartEngine in connection with
such shares).

Material Terms: See above.

¢ Name of Entity: Simon Webster
Relationship to Company: Director
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: In July 2022, SHUFL Venture
Capital LTD., purchased $250,000 in Convertible Promissory Notes in connection
with our offering pursuant to Rule 506(c), of up to $750,000 in Convertible
Promissory Notes. Simon Webster, a director, is the Chief Executive Officer of
SHUFL Venture Capital LTD.
Material Terms: The Note is due and payable in six (6) equal monthly
installments, with the first installment being due on February 30, 2023. The Note
is convertible into shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock, at a
conversion price of $2.7358 per share. To prevent dilution to the Company's
stockholders, the Company's founder's have agreed to forfeit a number of their
Class A Shares equal to the number of Class A Shares issued to the investor upon
the conversion of the Note. Pursuant to an Investor Rights Agreement, SHUFL
has the right to invest an amount equal to 20% of the principal amount of the
Note, in the Company’s next non-crowdfunding equity financing, at a 25%
discount to the offering price in such financing.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $81,567,587.63
Valuation Details:

We determined our pre-money valuation through a comparison with Talkspace, a
mental health treatment platform. TalkSpace went public on June 23, 2021, ata $1.4
billion valuation with 46,000 active users and ended its first day of trading on Nasdaqg
at a share price higher than its offering price (the stock has since declined sharply due
to management upheaval and other factors that are not relevant to Fisher Wallace
Labs).

Fisher Wallace is currently a medical device company but is planning and developing
an app, which may be distributed separately from its hardware business, that will offer
talk therapy and other digital healthcare solutions to its customers, many of which
may have already been acquired through hardware sales. We believe that converting a
hardware customer to a digital health customer will require a negligible additional



cost of acquisition.

Today, Fisher Wallace has approximately 64,000 customers who we consider "active’
users. Our average retail price today is $299 for the hardware, and we intend to start
deriving recurring digital health revenue in late 2023 or 2024. An $81.2 million
valuation today assigns approximately $1,270 of enterprise value to each current
active Fisher Wallace user.

Citations:

- https://www.fiercehealthcare.com/tech/talkspace-to-go-public-1-4b-deal-blank-
check-firm

- https://bhbusiness.com/2021,/06/23/talkspace-makes-public-debut-on-nasdaq/

The total number of shares outstanding on a fullv diluted basis, 9,258,525 shares,
includes 6,068,096 shares of Class A Voting Common Stock, 2,276,618 shares of Class
B Non-Voting Common Stock, and 913,809 shares of Series Seed Preferred Stock.

The Company set its valuation internally, without a formal-third party independent
evaluation. The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. In
making this calculation, we have assumed: (1) all preferred stock is converted to
common stock; (ii) all outstanding options, warrants, and other securities with a right
to acquire shares are exercised; and (iii) any shares reserved for issuance under a stock
plan are issued.

The pre-money valuation does not take into account any convertible securities
currently outstanding. The Company currently has $382,000 in Convertible Notes
outstanding. Upon conversion of these Notes, the founders have agreed to forfeit a
number of their shares egual to the number of shares issued upon conversion.
Therefore, these Convertible Notes are non-dilutive. Please refer to the Company
Securities section of the Offering Memorandum for further details regarding current
outstanding convertible securities.

The Company set its valuation internally without a formal-third party independent
evaluation.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $9,999.35 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

o Research & Development
94.5%
The funds will be used to support the costs of clinical trials and product
development.



If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,844,761.14, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

¢ Research & Development
80.0%

The funds will be used to support the costs of clinical trials and product
development.

e [nventory and Operations
14.5%
These funds will be used to support growth inventory and, potentially,
operations.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
www.fisherwallace.com (https://www.fisherwallace.com/annualreports).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;



(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) 1t liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at:
www.startengine.com/fisherwallace

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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" IndigoSpire

CPAs & ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
April 15, 2022
To: Board of Directors, Fisher Wallace Laboratories, Inc.
Re: 2020-2019 Consolidated Financial Statement Audit

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial staterents of Fisher Wallace Laboratories, Inc.
(the "Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and
the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’” equity/deficit, and cash flows for the
calendar years thus ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
arror.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit of the Company’s financial statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’'s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.



Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the Company as of December 31, 2021and 2020, and the consolidated
results of its operations, shareholders’ equity/deficit and its cash flows for the calendar year periods thus
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Going Concern

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will
continue as a going concern. As discussed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company has suffered recurring losses from operations and has a net capital deficiency that raise substantial
doubt about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's evaluation of the events and
conditions and management's plans regarding these matters are also described in the notes to the financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from
the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Sincerely,

IndigoSpire CPA Group

IndigoSpire CPA Group, LLC
Aurora, Colorado

April 15, 2022



FISHER WALILACE LABORATORIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020

December 31,

December 31,

ASSETS
Current Asscts:
Cash in banks 3
Accounts recervable
Inventories
Security Deposit
Other current assets

Total Current Assets

TOTAIL ASSETS 3

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT)
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 3
Accrued expenses
Loans pavable, net of unamortized discount
Oither current liabilines

Total Current Liabilities

MNon-Current Liabilities:
Due to related party

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilitics

Stockholders' Equity (Deficit):
Series Seed Preferred Stock, 300001 par value, 913,809 shares
authorized, 456,205 and () shares issued and outstanding
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectvely.

Class A voting commaon stock, S00007 par value, 6,920, KK and
H.000.0000 shares authorized, G0000000 and 6,000 (K0 shares
1ssued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
all respectively.

Class B nonvoting common stock, 300001 par, 2,230,000 and
2000000 shares authorized, 1,196,273 and 593,118 shares
1ssued and outstanding as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
all respectively.

Additional paid-in capital

Class B common stock subseriptions receivable

Acoumulated deficit

Total Stockholders' Equity (Deficit)

TOTAL LIABILTTIES AND STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY (DEFICTT) 3

2021 2020
1,929,380 695,749
- 2302
33,690 141,900
21,167
15,166 13,408
1,999 403 853,359
1,999 403 853,359
418,483 331,358
74,488 37,174
471,468 725122
1,759 369
966,198 1,004 023
576,525 620,416
276,525 620,416
1,542,723 1,714,439
46
GO0 G0
119 59
6,552,968 2027032
(73,284) (127,293)
(6,023,769 (2,761 4TE)
456,680 (861,080
1,999 403 853,359

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements

-3



FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

December 31, December 31,
2021 2020
Met sales 3 4230290 § 4. 250,866
Cost of goods sold (623,703) (970,761)
Gross profit 3,606,587 3,280,105
Operating Expenses:
Advertising and marketing 3229171 3,261,001
General and administrative expenses 1,464,475 1,411,054
Research and development 2 076,469 349 626
Total Operating Expenses 6,770,115 5,021,681
Loss tfrom operations (3,163,528) (1,741,576)
Other Expenses:
Gain from loan forgiveness 48,620 -
Interest expense (147 493) (80,559
Orther income 360 2
Total Other Expenses (98,513) (80,5549
Provision for income tax 250 1,597
Net Loss $ (3,262291) § (1,823,732)
Weighted-average vested common shares ourstanding;
- Basic and Diluted 6,960,252 6,349 768
Net loss per common share
- Basic and Dilured 5 (047 % (0.29)

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements
-4 -



FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY/(DEFICIT)

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

f';u.'ri.l.'r: 5I.'L'|:|. '|1'r|.':|-|.'r:r|.'|:| 51‘\1 IL'LC

';“.Iﬂ!'ih II. |:".III.'I:II.'I:II:ﬂ:I ﬂrnr_'l:

':-:IIIH!& ]"I- I:".III.'I:II.'I:II:I1:I ﬂrlll'_'k

Addirional

Subscriptions

Accumiualated

Tutal

Srockholders

Shares Amount Shares Aot Sharey Amount Paid-In Capiral Reccivalle Defici Equity (Deficic)
Balanee as of December 31, 2019 AL LIELEE 5 L) M558 5 20 5 G5RT1S 5 E38E 5 (AT, T4y 5 [HG.801]
Issance of Class B common stock from reg CF offering 232 394 23 GG 515 G GEE T2.920
[ssuance of Class B common stock from reg A offering 156,151 1] UT3457 127,293 B, 160
i ]'r'l:-u'ring COsEs [E-I':-:::._l!'h-'i:’-_;- - = [El!'ﬁ,,ﬁ.x".-':
Mot ineome (los) (1,823,738 (1,523,733
Balanee at December 31, 2020 AL LIELLE ) EREN L] S0 2027052 {127,203 (2,761 478) [B61,050
[sswance of Serices Seod Preferred Soock 4545, 505 4 1,245 5954 1,250 (HH0
[ssuance of Class ¥ cormmon stock from Reg A offering G3,155 i) 3,60 02 54,000 3,745,071
Ohffering costs (339019 (539 01Y)
[ssuance of warrants I18A1H L18.418
Stock-based compensagon 5,54 - 5,550
Mt ingome (loss) - - - - - - - (3,202 2004 (3,262 291}
Balance at Decermber 31, 2021 454050015 5 4+ G H R b1 L] 119,273 5 119 .7 i, 552 HE ] 15,254 5 (i, 1123, 76y g 456,680

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Mer Loss !
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used
in operating activities:
PPP loan forgiveness
Stock-based compensation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
(Increase)/ decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase)/ decrease in inventories
(Increase) /decrease in security deposit
(Increase)/decrease in other current assets
Increase/ (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase/ (decrease) in accrued expenses
Increase/ {decrease) in other current liabilities

Increase/ (decrease) in due to related party

Met Cash Used in {}Imrﬂﬁng MAetivities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from loans
Loan repavments
Proceeds from issuance of Series Seed Preferred Stock
Proceeds from issuance of Class B common stock
Offering costs

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net Change In Cash

Cash at Beginning of Period

Cash ar End of Period 8

Supplemental Diisclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash paid for interest

Cash paid for income taxes

2021 2020
(3,262,291) (1,823,732
(48,620

5,580 -
2302 28,258
108,210 (135,191)

(21,167) -
(1,757) 617
87,125 254,933
37,315 37,174
1,390 (35,3601
(43,891) (5,108
(3,135,805 (1,678,4100)
995,000 1,288,182
(1,200,035) (563,060)

1,250 (0K -
3745071 1,575,087
(420,600 (265,633)
4 36 456 2034 575
1,233,631 356,165
695,749 339 584
1,929 380 (95,749
118,667 7,685

See Independent Auditor’s Report and accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Fisher Wallace Laboratories Inc. (the “Company™), is a corporation formed on August 23, 2019 in the
State of Delaware. Fisher Wallace Laboratories LLC (the “LLC™), a Delaware limited lability
company organized on December 29, 2006 under common ownership and control as the Company.
In September 2019, the LLC Company merged with the Company in an acquisition transaction,
whereby the owners of the LLC Company agreed to exchange 100% of the interests in the LLC
Company for 6,000,000 shares of Company’s Class A Common Stock.

The LLC Company contributed substanually all of its assets including cash, accounts receivable,
inventories, intangible assets, accounts payable and other obligations to the Company. The Company
began its commercial operations with the contributed net assets of LLC in November 2019, The
Company’s headquarters are located in New York, NY,

The Company manufactures (through a subcontractor in China) a cranial electrotherapy stimulation
device, the Fisher Wallace Stimulator, which 1s FDA cleared for the treatment of depression, anxiety,
and insomnia. The device was invented by two electrical engineers, Saul and Bernard Liss, in the
1980°s, and has been on the market as an FDA sancdoned device since 1991, The device uses a mild
form of alternating current to stimulate key neurotransmitters, including dopamine, serotonin and
beta-endorphin, and also lowers cortisol, the stress hormone.

The Fisher Wallace Stimulator restores sleep and improves mood by using patented radio frequencies
to gently stimulate the brain's production of serotonin, beta-endorphin, and other key neurochemicals,
Multiple published studies, including studies performed at Harvard Medical School, have proven the
safety and effectiveness of the device. Patients typically use the device twice a day for twenty minutes
(once in the morning and once before bedtime). The device causes no serious side effects and 1s sate
tor use while taking medication.

The Fisher Wallace Stumulator is sold primarily to consumers directly by the Company, as well as to a
handful of distributors, Most of the distributors are located in the US, there is one in Mexico, and
several are in Burope,

The Company have a CE/ISO mark which allows it to sell in Europe and Mexico (COFAPRISE),
NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation and Basis for Consolidaton

The Company prepares consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP). In accordance with ASC 805-50-45-
5, for transactions between entities under common control, consolidated financial statements and
financial information presented for prior periods should be retroactively adjusted to furnish
comparative information. Therefore, these consolidated financial statements include all accounts of
Fisher Wallace Laboratories Inc. and Fisher Wallace Laboratories, LLC. All transactions and balances
between and among the aforementioned companies have been eliminated in consolidating the
accounts for consolidated financial statement presentation. The accounting and reporting policies of
the Company conform to GAAP. The Company adopted the calendar vear as its basis of reporting.
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
difter from those estimates,

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a
liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or lability in an
orderly transaction between market participants as of the measurement date. Applicable accounting
guidance provides an established hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that maximizes the
use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring that the most
observable inputs be used when available. Observable inputs are inputs that market participants would
use in valuing the asset or hability and are developed based on market data obtained from sources
independent of the Company, Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Company’s assumptions
about the factors that market participants would use in valuing the asset or liability, There are three
levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1 - Observable inputs that reflect quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets.

Level 2 - Include other inputs that are directly or indirectly observable in the marketplace.
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs which are supported by little or no market activity,

The tair value hierarchy also requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize
the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value,

Fair-value estimates discussed herein are based upon certain market assumptions and pertinent
information available to management as of December 31, 2021. The carrving amounts reported in

the balance sheets approximate their fair value,

Cash Equivalents and Concentration of Cash Balance

The Company considers all highly liquid securities with an original maturity of less than three months
to be cash equivalents. Bank deposit accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation up to $250,000. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit accounts, at
times, may exceed federally insured limits, As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s cash
balances exceeded federally insured limits by $1,612,494 and $423,732, respectively,



FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

Accounts Recelvable

The Company assesses its receivables based on historical loss patterns, aging of the receivables, and
assessments of specific identifiable customer accounts considered at risk or uncollectible. The
Company also considers any changes to the financial condition of its customers and any other external
market factors that could impact the collectability of the receivables in the determination of the
allowance for doubtful accounts. The Company has determined an allowance on its accounts
receivable 1s not necessary as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market and accounted for using the First In First Out
(FIFO)} method. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company’s inventory balances amounting
to $33,690 and 5141900, respectively, consisted primarily of medical devices. The Company regularly
evaluates inventory for possible impairment and estimate inventory market value based on several
subjective assumptions including estimated future demand and market conditions, as well as other
observable factors such as current sell-through of the Company's products, recent changes in product
demand, global and regional economic conditions, historical experience selling through liquidation
and price discounted channels, and the amount of inventory on hand. If the estimated inventory
market value is less than its carryving value, the carrying value is adjusted to market value and the
resulting impairment charge is recorded in costs of net revenues in the consolidated statements of

operations. The Company records no impairment and obsolescence reserves against its inventory
balances as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,

Patents

The Company capitalizes patent filing fees and it expenses legal fees, in connection with internally
developed pending patents. The Company also will capitalize patent defense costs to the extent these
costs enhance the economic value of an existing patent. Patents are amortized over the expected
period to be benefited, not to exceed the patent lives, which may be as long as 17 years. The
Company’s patent was acquired in 2019 from LLC in the capital contribution of the Company. While
the management believes the patent to be an integral part of the Company’s commercial operation,
LLC had fully amortized the asset prior to assignment.

Revenue Recognition

ASC Topie 606, “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ establishes principles for reporting
information about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from
the entity’s contracts to provide goods or services to customers. Revenues are recognized when
control of the promised goods or services are transferred to a customer, in an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company applies the following five steps in order to determine the appropriate amount of revenue to
be recognized as it fulfills its obligations under each of its agreements: 1) identity the contract with a
customer; 2) identify the performance obligations in the contract; 3) determine the transaction price;
4) allocate the transaction price to performance obligations in the contract; and 5) recognize revenue
as the performance obligation is satisfied. No adjustments to revenue recognition were required from
the adoption of ASC 606, which was adopted January 1, 2019 and retroactively applied to the periods
presented. The Company generally recognizes revenues upon shipment of its products,
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

Shipping and Handling

Costs incurred for shipping and handling are included in cost of revenue at the time the related revenue
is recognized, Amounts billed to a customer for shipping and handling are reported as part of sales
revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of Goods Sold include the cost of suimulator, batteries, accessories and spare parts, device bags,
labels, Shopify fees, strap material, and PayPal fees.

Income Taxes

The Company uses the liability method of accounting for income taxes as set forth in ASC T4, Tncome
Taxes. Under the hability method, deterred taxes are determined based on the temporary differences
between the tinancial statement and tax basis of assets and liabilities using tax rates expected to be in
effect during the years in which the basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded when
it 1s unlikely that the deferred tax assets will be realized.

The Company assesses its income tax positions and records tax benefits for all vears subject to
examination based upon its evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the
reporting date. In accordance with ASC 740-10), for those tax positions where there is a greater than
50% likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, our policy is to record the largest amount of tax
benefit that 1s more likely than not to be realized upon ultimate settlement with a taxing authority that
has full knowledge of all relevant information. For those income tax positions where there is less than
500 likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefit will be recognized in the consolidated
financial statements. The Company has determined that there are no material uncertain tax positions,

The Company accounts for income taxes with the recognition of estimated income taxes pavable or
refundable on income tax returns for the current period and for the estimated future tax effect
attributable to temporary differences and carrvtorwards. Measurement of deferred income items is
based on enacted tax laws including tax rates, with the measurement of deterred income tax assets
being reduced by available tax benefits not expected to be realized in the immediate future.

From its inception until September 2019, the Company was subject to taxation as a limited hability
company, and therefore was treated as a partnership for federal and state income tax purposes with
all income tax liabilities and/or benefits of the Company being passed through to the members. As
such, no recognition of federal or state income taxes for the Company have been provided tor in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements during that period.

For the period after the September 2019 conversion, the Company was taxed as a corporation. The
Company pays Federal and State income taxes at rates of approximately 21% and 6.5%, respectively,

and has used an effective blended rate of 26% to derive at deferred tax assets. The Company has a

net operating loss carryforward of $5,134,365 and $1,857,860 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, together with GAAP to tax basis differences, resulted to a net deferred tax asset of
$1,349.924 and $485,552 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Due to uncertainty as to
the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income in the future to udlize the net operating
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

loss carryforward, the Company has recorded a full valuation allowance to reduce the deferred tax

asset to zero. As a result, the Company’s net etfective tax rate was 0% for the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020.

The Company files U.5. federal and state income tax returns. All tax periods since inception remain
open to examination by the taxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subject.

Met Earnings or Loss per Share

Net earnings or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted-average
number of common shares outstanding during the period, excluding shares subject to redemption or
forteiture. Diluted net earnings or loss per share reflect the actual weighted average of common shares
issued and outstanding during the period, adjusted for potentially dilutive securities outstanding,
Potentially dilutive securities are excluded from the computation of the diluted net earnings or loss
per share if their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020}, there were no
dilutive securities outstanding. The basic and dilutive earnings or loss per share data are provided in
the consolidated statement of operations.

NOTE 3: GOING CONCERN

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis,
which contemplates the realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of
business. The Company sustained net losses of $3,262,291 and $1,823,732 for the vears ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and has accumulated deficit of 36,023,769 as of December
31, 2021, The Company has not vet generated significant revenues and has negative cash flows from
operating activities of $3,135,805 and 31,678,410 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. In addition, the Company faces significant economic uncertainty due to the COVID-19
pandemic and associated economic slowdown.

The Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in the next twelve months following the date
the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued is dependent upon its ability to
produce revenues and,/or obrain financing sufficient to meet current and future obligations and deploy
such to produce profitable operating results. Management has evaluated these conditions and plans to
generate revenues and raise capital as needed to satisfy its capital needs. No assurance can be given
that the Company will be successful in these efforts.

These factors, among others, raise substantial doubt about the ability of the Company to continue as
a poing concern for a reasonable period of tme. The consolidated financial statements do not include
any adjustments relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the

amounts and classification of liabilities that might be necessary should the Company be unable to
CONtINUE 4s 4 going concern.

NOTE 4: DEBT INSTRUMENTS

The Company’s loans pavable as of December 31, 2021 consist of:
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

Shopify loans $313,863
Clearbanc loan 157,605
Loans payable 3471,468

Shopity Loans

In March and June 2020, the Company entered into accounts recervable loan agreements with Shopify
Capital, Inc. Under the agreements, the Company received $195,000 and $310,000, respectively, and
assigned $206,700 and $334,800, respectively, of Company’s future receivables. The daily payment is
17% of Company’s receivables, received through the Company’s Shopify ecommerce platform. The
Company repaid these loans in full in 2020 and incurred 336,500 interest expense for the vear ended

December 31, 2020,

The Company had new accounts receivable loan agreement with Shopify Capital, Inc. on October 29,
2020, Under this agreement, the Company received $410,000 and assigned 3463,300 of Company’s
future receivables. The daily payment is 17% of Company’s receivables, received through the
Company’s Shopify ecommerce platform. The Company recorded discount on this loan amounting
to $53,300, to be amortized to interest expense over the life of the loan. The Company’s SMBA and
other bank accounts associated with Shopify services accounts and all personal properties are used as
collateral for this loan, As of December 31, 2020, the balance of this loan and unamortized discount
amounted to 3351940 and $45,752, respectively. The Company repaid these loans in full in 2021 and
incurred $45,752 and $7,548 of interest expense for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,

respectively.

On June 11, 2021, new accounts receivable loan agreement was entered into by the Company with
Shopify Capital, having the same terms and conditions with the previous loan agreements. The
Company received $350,000 and assigned $395,500 of Company’s future receivables, with daily
repayment of 17% of Company’s receivables, received through the Company™s Shopify ecommerce
platform. The Company recorded discount on this loan amounting to $45,500, to be amortized to
interest expense over the life of the loan. Balance of this loan amounted to $18,863 and unamortized
discount amounted to 32,452 as of December 31, 2021. Interest expense recognized on this loan

amounted to $43,048 for the year ended December 31, 2021,

On October 26, 2021, the Company had new accounts receivable loan agreement with Shopify Capital,
having the same terms and conditions with the previous loan agreements. The Company received
$295,000 and assigned $333,350 of Company’s future receivables, with daily repayment of 17% of
Company’s receivables, received through the Company’s Shopify ecommerce platform. The Company
recorded discount on this loan amounting to $38 350, to be amortized to interest expense over the
life of the loan. No payment was made as of December 31, 2021 on this loan and no interest expense
was recognized for the year ended December 31, 2021, Balance of this loan amounted to $295,000
and unamortized discount amounted to 338,350 as of December 31, 2021.

Clearbanc Loan

On December 16, 2020, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Clear Finance Technology
Corp. (Clearbanc), of which Clearbanc paid the Company’s bills for advertising expenses to Google
and Facebook amounting to $242 346 and $82,654, respectively, for a total of $325,000. Under this
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

agreement, the Company assigned 3364,000 of Company’s future receivables which i1s due tor payment
to Clearbanc based on 20% of Company’s future receivables collected on a daily basis. The loan is not
subject to any collateral. The Company recorded discount on this loan amounting to $39,000, to be
amortized to interest expense over the life of the loan. As of December 31, 2020, balance of this loan
and unamortized discount amounted to $325,000 and 339,000, respectv Elj.

On February 24, 2021, this loan was restructured, and the Company received additional loans of
150,000 after pavment of 354,172 of principal on the loan. The new loan principal amount was
$420,828 with a discount of $18,000. On April 28, 2021, the loan was again restructured, and the
Company received an additional loan of $200,000 atter a principal loan repavment of $156,005. The
new loan principal amount was $464,823 with a discount of $24,000 to be amortized over the life of
the loan.

The loan balance as of December 31, 2021 amounted to 3$157,605 and total interest expense
recognized on this loan for the vear ended December 31, 2021 amounted to $29,430, Unamortized
discount as of December 31, 2021 amounted to §7,7435.

PPP Loan

In May 2020, the Company obtained a Pavcheck Protection Program (PPP) loan from American
BExpress National Bank amounting to 545,182, The loan is subject to interest of 1% per annum and is
pavable in 18 monthly installments after a deterral of 6 months. Monthly payments are calculated on
a 2-year amortization basis and the balance will be payable at its maturity date on April 21, 2022, Loan
balance amounted to 348,182 as of December 31, 2020. The Company filed for loan forgiveness in
accordance with the CARES Act provision and received the approval on April 8, 2021, The Company
recognized this loan and interest accruing on the loan amounting to $437 as income from loan
forgiveness in the consolidated statements of operations for a total of $48,620.

NOTE 5: STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY/(DEFICIT)

Capital S
The Company initially authorized 10,000,000 shares of common stock. These shares have been
divided into 8,000,000 Class A Voting Common Stock, $0.0001 par value per share and 2,000,000
Class B Non-Voting Common Stock, $0.0001 par value per share.

On March 28, 2020, the Company amended its certificate of incorporation to increase its authorized
common stock to 10,200,000, consisting of 8,000,000 Class A voting common stock, $0.0001 par
value per share and 2,200,000 Class B non-voting common stock, $0.0001 par value per share.

On December 22, 2021, the Company amended its certificate of incorporation to amend its authorized
stock to 9,150,000 shares of common stock, consisting of 6,920,000 shares of Class A voting common
stock and 2,230,000 shares of Class B non-voting common stock, and 913,809 shares of preferred
stock, designed as Series Seed Preferred Stock. Each with 30.0001 par value per share.

Class A voting common stock have voting rights, while Class B nonvoting common stock do not.
The common stock is subject to the rights and preferences of common stock. Preferred stockholders
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

are entitled to certain dilution protected dividend preference over common stockholders. Series Seed
Preterred Stock have a liquidation preference of 32.7358 per share, with a total liquidation preference
of $1.250.000 as of December 31, 2021, Series Seed Preferred Stock are convertible at the holders’
option into common stock at a dilution protected 1:1 conversion rate. Series Seed Preferred stock is
subject to mandatory conversion it and upon an initial public offering. Series Seed Preferred Stock
are entitled to one vote per share on an as-converted basis,

Common Stock

During the year ended December 31, 2019, the Company executed an offering under Regulation CF
through StartEngine platform and has issued 204,538 shares of Class B Common Stock in exchange
for $489.330, of which 368,388 remained receivable from the subscribing shareholders as of
December 31, 2019 and received during the vear ended December 31, 2020, For the year ended
December 31, 2020, an additional 232 399 shares of Class B Common Stock were 1ssued for total
gross proceeds of $660,515 and incurred offering costs of $149,066. The holders of Class B Common
Stock issued in the Regulation CF campaign have no voting rights but are entitled to receive pro rata
dividends, if any, declared by our board of directors out of legally available funds, however, subject to
any preferential right of the holders of any preferred stock that may be authorized and issued in the
future.

On September 2, 2020, the Company undertook another stock offering under Regulation A for up to
1,610,305 shares of Class B Common Stock, plus up to 64,412 additional bonus shares, at $6.21 per
share, for a maximum gross offering of $10,399,999, The Company is conducting this offering through
StartEngine, who is entitled to a 7% cash commission as well as warrants to purchase up to 5% of the
securities issued in the offering.  As of December 31, 2021, the Company accumulated total gross
proceeds of $1,3,691,062 for the issuance of 603,155 shares of Class B Common Stock. Committed
subscriptions not yet received as of December 31, 2021 amounted to $73,284 and are recognized as
subscriptions receivable in the consolidated balance sheets. The Company incurred total offering
costs of $539,019 for the year ended December 31, 2021 related to this offering,

Preferred Stock

In December 2021, the Company issued 456,904 shares of its Series Seed Preferred Stock to an
investor at 32,7358 per share, providing proceeds of 51,250,000,

g a . -r

As discussed above, the Company granted Class B Common Stock warrants to StartEngine at 5% of
securities issued in its Regulation A offering. Total stock warrants outstanding corresponding to
759,336 shares issued in the offering was 37,967 as of December 31, 2021. The warrants are exercisable
at 36.21 price per share, expire after ten years, and are fully vested at the grant date.

The Company valued these warrants using the Black-Scholes valuation method with the following
inputs:
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Fxercise Prce 56.21 N/A
Fair Value of Class B Common Stock 26.21 N/A
Risk Free Interest Rate 1.20%% MN/A
Expected Dividend Yield 0L O %% MN/A
FExpected Volatlity 58.50% N/A
Expected Life (vears) 5.000 N/A
Fair Value per Warrant 33.12 MN/A

The total fair value of the warrants issued in 2021 was $118.418. During the yvear ended December 31,
2021, no Class B Common Stock warrants were exercised, and all 37967 warrants remained
outstanding as of December 31, 2021,

2021 Omnibus Incentive Plan

The Company adopted the 2021 Ownibus Tncentive Plan (the *Plan™), as amended and restated. The Plan
permits the grant of stock options to attract and retain employees and consultants. Under the Plan,
the Company issues stock options having a term of up to ten vears and a strike price of no less than
fair market value of common stock. Stock option is subject to vesting restrictions determined on a
case-by-case basis.

The Company has reserved 981,896 shares of common stock under the Plan. As of December 31,
2021, 68,096 shares of common stock were granted, 4,256 of which is exercisable, and 913,800 shares
remained available for issuance under the Plan. A summary of options activities for the year ended
December 31, 2021 is as follows:

Diecember 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Weighted Weighted
Average Excrcise Average Excrcise
Optiods Price Orpriois Price
Ohtstanding - bemnning of vear - % - 3
Crranted (LRI VY 242 3
Faercized ] ]
Forfeited 5 - - 5
Chutstanding - end of year GRO9G & 242 - %
T
Exercisable at end of yei 4256 5 242 - 5
Weghted average prant date fair value of aptions
pranted during year 5 1311 NS A
[ntrinsic value of opiions outstanding at year-end 5§ 25E0B4 MN/A
[ntrinsic value of options exercisable ar vear-end E] 16,130 B A
Weighted average duration (vears) to expiration of
outstanding options ar year-cod 267 N/A
";"i'ﬂlg_hﬂ,'d averagEe durariom [years) to l,"-cpi'ruri-:'un b
exercisable opoions at year-end 9,67 N/ A
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FISHER WALLACE LABORATORIES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

The Company measures employee stock-based awards at grant-date fair value and recognizes
employee compensation expense on a straight-line basis over the vesting period of the award.
Determining the appropriate fair value of stock-based awards requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the fair value of the Company’s common stock, and for stock options, the
expected life of the option, and expected stock price voladlity, The Company used the Black-Scholes
option pricing model to value its stock option awards, The assumptions used in calculating the fair
value of stock-based awards represent management’s best estimates and involve inherent uncertainties
and the application of management’s judgment. As a result, if factors change and management uses
different assumptions, stock-based compensation expense could be materially different for future
awards.

The expected life of stock options was estimated using the “simplified method,” which is the midpoint
berween the vesting start date and the end of the contractual term, as the Company has limited
historical information to develop reasonable expectations about furure exercise patterns and
employment duration for its stock options grants. The simplified method is based on the average of
the vesting tranches and the contractual life of each grant. For stock price volatlity, the Company uses
comparable public companies as a basis for its expected volatility to calculate the fair value of options
grants. The risk-tree interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury notes with a term approximating the
expected life of the option. The estimation of the number of stock awards that will ultimately vest
requires judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from the Company’s
current estimates, such amounts are recognized as an adjustment in the period in which estimates are
revised. The following inputs were used to value to the Company’s stock options:

December 31,2021  December 31, 2020

Risk Free Interest Rate (0.93% N/A
Expected Dividend Yield 0,005 N/A
Expected Volatlity 58.50%% N/A
Expected Life (vears) N/A
Fair Value per Stock Option $1.31 N/A

The Company calculated its estimate of the value of the stock compensation granted for the year
ended December 31, 2021 under FASB ASC 718, and recorded compensation costs related to the
stock option grants of 5580, As of December 31, 2021, there is $83,694 of stock-based
compensation to be recognized over the following 3.75 vears,

NOTE 6: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company was capitalized with cash, inventory, accounts receivable, intangible assets, accounts
payvable and other obligations after inception from LLC in exchange for the shares of Class A
Common Stock of the Company. The Company recorded these contributed assets at their verifiable
book value. No goodwill or excess purchase price was allocated. Many of the most valuable assets
contributed by LLC to the Company included customer lists, branding goodwill, patents and other
intangibles that have no book value in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the years then ended

The Company has loans from its kev employees to secure working capital amounting to $576,525 and
$620,416 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. These loans bear 5% interest per annum
starting January 1, 2020 and have no fixed maturity. The Company intends to repay these loans when
prudent for the long-term health of the Company. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020,
the Company recognized interest expense of 328,826 and $28,826, respectvely. Total accrued interest
balance on these loans amounted to $57,652 and 328,826 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively, and recognized under accrued expenses in the consolidated balance sheets.

NOTE 7: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company entered into a new lease agreement with K and P Studios LLC for its office starting
May 1, 2020 and on month-to-month lease for a monthly rent of §1,700.

Tortal rent expense recognized for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to 541,008
and $41,008, respectively.

Contingencies

The Company may be subject to pending legal proceedings and regulatory actions in the ordinary
course of business. The results of such proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, but the
Company does not anticipate that the final outcome, it any, arising out of any such matter will have a
material adverse effect on its business, financial condition or results of operations,

NOTE 8: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606),
This ASU supersedes the previous revenue recognition requirements in ASC Topic 605—Revenue
Recognition and most industry-specific guidance throughout the ASC. The core principle within this
ASU is to recognize revenues when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an
amount that reflects the consideration expected to be received for those goods or services. In August
2015, the FASB 1ssued ASU 2015-14, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which deferred the
effective date for ASU 2014-09 by one year to fiscal vears beginning after December 15, 2018, while
providing the option to early adopt for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016, Transition
methods under ASU 2014-09 must be through either (i) retrospective application to each prior
reporting period presented, or (ii) retrospective application with a cumulative effect adjustment at the
date of initial application. The Company adopted this new standard effective January 1, 2019,

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This ASU requires a lessee to
